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RECEfl~ED

BEFORE THE ILLINOIS POLLUTION CONTROL BOARI9LERK’S OFFICE

PEOPLEOF THESTATE OF ILLINOIS, ) APR 152004
) STATE OF ILLINOIS

Complainant, ) Pollution Control Board
)

v. ) No. PCB96-98
)

SKOKJEVALLEY ASPHALT, CO.,INC., )
anflhinois corporation, . )
EDWIN L. FREDERICK,JR, )
individually andasownerand )
Presidentof SkokieValleyAsphalt )
Co.,Inc., and )
RICHARD J.FREDERICK, )
individually andasownerand )
Vice Presidentof ‘ )
SkokieValleyAsphaltCo., Inc., )

)
Respondents. )

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS’
CLOSING REBUTTAL ARGUMENT ANDREPLY BRIEF

Now comestheComplainant,PEOPLEOF THE STATEOF 1LLINOIS, ex rel LISA

MADIGAN, Attorney Generalofthe StateofIllinois, andpursuantto HearingOfficer Sudnian’s

October31, 2003,Orderpresentstheirclosingrebuttalargumentandreplybrief.

I. FACTS

Ratherthanaddresseachandeverymisstatementof fact containedin Respondents’

ClosingArgumentandPostTrial Brief (“RCA”), thePeopleof theStateofIllinois (“People”)rely

on thefactscontainedin theTrial RecordmadeOctober30th and31st,2003.ThePeoplewill,

however,pointout afew errorsin RCAbecausetheirfactsorstatementshaveno basisin the

record.For example:
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A. RESPONDENTSREPEATEDLY VIOLATE PERMIT REQUIREMENTS

In RCA, theyclaim “[t]here wereafewviolationsfor total suspendedsolids.”

Respondents’actualnumberofNPDES permitdischargeviolationsfor Total SuspendedSolids

(“TSS”) will neverreallybeknown,but it is clearfrom therecordthattheyviolatedtheTSS

concentrationlimits morethanadozentimes.2The30 dayaverageconcentrationfor stormwater

dischargesSVA reportedin theDischargeMonitoringReport(“DM.R”) form submittedto the

Illinios EPA for August,September,andOctober,1991;February,November,andDecember,

1992; MayandJune,1993;andApril, 1995werein excessoftheconcentrationlimits allowedin

theirNPDESpermit.3Thedaily maximumdischargeconcentrationSVA reportedfor August and

October1991, June1993,andApril 1995 alsowerein excessoftheconcentrationlimits allowed

in theirNPDESpermit.4

TheseTSSconcentrationlimit violationsweresubmittedonDMR formsto theIllinois

EPAby SVA. Respondentsfailed to submitanyDMRs in accordancewith theirNPDESpermit

for years.5 EventhoughSVA’s NPDESpermitbecameeffectivein Mayof 1986 andrequired

‘RAC at 4. (Note: the first 8 pagesofRACarenotnumberedin thePeople’scopy.The
Peopleaddedthenumbersfor easierreference.)

2Tr. at 53 - 58; Compi.Exh.s1,9, 10; 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16 and17.Obviously

Respondentsknewtheywererequiredto submitmonthlyDMRs, but choseto ignorethepermit
requirement.

~Tr. at 53-58;Comp.Exhs. 1,9,10,11,12,13,14,15,16and 17.

~Tr. at 53 - 58; Comp. Exhs. 1, 9, 11, 16 and17.

~Compi.Exh.s8 and26.
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thattheysubmitDMRs beginningin June,1986,SVA did not submitanyDMRs that year.6

Likewise,SVA did not submitanyDIVIRs in 1987.~In a March 13, 1987,.letterto theIllinois

EPA,Respondentsadmitnot only thattheyfailedto submittheirDMRs, but alsothatthey

dischargedfrom theirsitewithout anymonitoring.8 Theletteris in responseto anillinois EPA

letterdatedMarch 6, 1 997~9TheIllinois EPAexplainedin thatletterthatRespondentswere

requiredto submitDMRs onamonthlybasis.’°Yet, ayearandahalflaterexplainingwhythey

still havenot submittedanyreports,Respondentsincrediblyclaim they”. . . did notknowthatwe

wereunderanobligation. . .“ to file monthlyDMRs.~ObviouslyRespondentsknewtheywere

requiredto submitmonthlyDMRs, but willfully choseto ignorethepermit requirement.’2

SVA submittedonly two DMRs, ratherthanthetwelverequiredbytheirpermit,for year

1988.13Respondentsadmit theydid not submitany earlierDMRs in aletterwrittento theIllinois

6 Tr. at 49 andComp. Exh.s1 and26.

~Tr. at 50; Comp. Exhs. 1 and 8A.

S Compi.Exh. 34. SVA’s March 13, 1987,letteris attachedasan exhibit to theHuff Site

InvestigationandWork Plan.Seealso,theIllinois EPA letterdatedMarch6, 1997,andSVA’s
November9, 1988,letterattachedasexhibits in front ofandbehind SVA’s 3/13/87letter.

~Compi.Exh. 34. TheIllinois EPAletter is alsoattachedasanexhibit in front ofSVA’s
3/13/87,letter.

‘° Compl. Exh.34. TheIllinois EPA letteris also attachedasan exhibit in front ofSVA’s

3/13/87,letter.

~‘ Compl.Exh.s26 and34. SVA’s November9, 1988,letterattachedasexhibit after
SVA’s 3/13/87letter in Compi.Exh. 34.

12 Compl. Exh.s1, 8 and34 (March 6, 1987,Illinois EPA letterattachedas an exhibit).

‘3Tr. at51, 52; Comp.Exhs. 1 ,8B, and26.
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EPAsignedby RichardFrederick.’4In thesameletter,Respondentsstatetheywill now submit

DMIR reportsasrequired.’5Nevertheless,in 1989,SVA failed to submitDMRs for themonthsof

April, June,August,September,October,November,andDecember.’6Again,in aJanuary1990

letterRespondentsadmit thattheyfailedto submitDMRs asrequiredby theirNPDESpermit and

assuretheIllinois EPAthat DMR omissionswill not occuragain.’7Yet,’ in that sameyear,SVA

failedto submitaDMR for themonthofSeptember.’8And again,in 1992,SVA failed to submit

theirDM’IR forthemonthofJuly.’9

WhetherSVA committedadditionalTSSconcentrationlimit violationsduringthemany

monthstheyfailedto submitDMRs is notknown.SVA repeatedlyfailedto submittheirDMRs

.possiblybecausetheydid notwant to submitTSSconcentrationlimit violationsto theIllinois

EPA. ..

Also, it is not knownwhetherRespondentsfiled falseDMRs to theIllinois EPAbecause

ofTSSconcentrationlimit violations.Remember,if SVA submittedtheirDMRs, theywere

sometimeslateandfalse.2°For example,SVA did notsubmittheirDecember1990DMR, which

‘4Tr. at289 - 91; Comp.Exh. 26.

‘5Comp.Exh.26.

16 Tr. at 52; Comp.Exh. 8C.

‘7Comp.Exh. 27.

‘~Tr. at52; Comp.Exh. 8D. Note: thequestionin thetranscriptindicates1999;however,
theanswerby thewitness,andtheexhibit refersto 1990. 1999appearsto beatypographical
error,oramistatementbyAssistantAttorneyGeneralCohen.

‘~Tr. at53; Comp.Exh. 8F.

20Tr.at37-41;Comp.Exhs.1,2,3,4,5and8.
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wasdueJanuary1991,until April 25, 1991~21J~wassignedandcertifiedbyRichardJ. Frederick.22

OtherthanthedateSVA puton theDecember1990DMR, thedataanddocumentareidenticalto

thedataanddocumentSVA submittedfor its November1990 DMIR.23 This is not theonly time

Respondentscommittedthe“photocopytheform-changethedate-resubmit”deception.They

repeatedit againin 1991. SVA’s January1991 DMR wasdueFebruary15, 1991.24Respondents

did not submitit to theIllinois EPAuntil April 25, 1991.25TheIllinois EPAreceivedSVA’s

February1991DMR beforetheirJanuaryDMR.26OtherthanthedatesRespondentswrote in, the

dataanddocumentin theJanuaryandFebruary1991DMRs areidentical.27

Respondentsadmitin RCA that theywillfully andknowingly submittedthedatafrom one

month’stestto theIllinois EPA for two separatemonths.28Respondentsthenclaim thatatsome

21 Tr. at 37; Comp. Exhs.1, 3 and8D.

22 Tr. at 37; Comp. Exh. 3.

23 Tr. at 37, 38; Comp.Exhs.2 and3. Note: the line ofquestioningrelatedto

Complainant’sExh. 2 is missingfrom thetranscript.It shouldappearapproximatelyattheendof
page36 beforethe questionsrelatedto Complainant’sExh. 3. Comp.Exh.2 wasadmittedinto
evidenceandquestionslinking Comp.Exhs.2 and3 arein thetranscript.

24 Tr. at 39; Comp.Exh. 4.

25 Tr. at 39; Comp. Exh.4 and8E.

26 Tr. at 39; Comp.Exh. 4, 5 and8E.

27 Tr. at 40; Comp.Exh. 4 and5.

28 RCA.at 5 - 6. Respondentsconcedetheyfiled falsereportsto the illinois EPA. Other

thanRespondentsadmissionfoundin thefactualbackgroundsectionofRCA, Respondents
chooseto ignorethe issuein the“Analysis oftheCulpabilityoftheRespondents”section.RCA
at21- 22. Laterin theirSection.42(h)analysis,Respondentsagainchangetheirpositionarguing
for no penaltybecauseit is theIllinois EPA’sfault that theyfiled falsereports.RCA at39 - 41.
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unknownpointin thefuturetheycorrectedthefalsefiling.29 In doingso,Respondentscite to page

485 ofthe Trial Transcript.3°ThereRespondentEdwinFredericktestifiesthatRespondents’

Exhibit 4 is a letterwith correctedreportsexplainingmisplaced,ormis-sentDMRs.3’

Respondents’Exhibit 4 is a letterfrom RespondentRichardFrederickto theirattorneydatedMay

13, 1993.In that letterRespondentsgive a completelydifferentexplanationabouttheirDIvIR

submissionsthantheonetheyprovidethisBoard.32It alsocontradictsanexplanationSVA gaveto

theIllinois EPA aboutfailing to submitDMRs in l990.~~Werethefalsereportssubmittedto the

Illinois EPAbecauseofTSSconcentrationlimit violations?

Considerthis too; up until at leastMayof 1991, thewholetimeperiodtheirNPDES

permitwasin forceandmonthsafterit expired,SVA did nothavean accessibleeffluentdischarge

samplingpoint.34Whereor how SVA took thesamplesis unknown.Without arepresentative

dischargesamplingpointall ofSVA’s DMR submissionsaresuspect.35Chris Kallis, Illinois EPA

FieldInspector,notedthis in 1991whenhewrote”.. . dueto inadequatesamplingpointsthe

accuracyofthesereportsis in seriousquestion. .“~

29 RCA at 6.

30 RCA at 6.

31 RCAat 6.

32 RCA at5 - 6; Resp.Exh. 4.

33Pl. Exh. 27.

34Tr at 139 - 42; Compi.Exh.s 1 and 19.

~ Compi.Exh. 19.

36 Compi.Exh. 19.
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No onewill everknowhowmanytimesRespondentsviolatedthe TSSconcentration

limits. However,it is clearbasedonRespondentsown submissionsthattheyviolatedtheir

NPDESpermitby dischargingin excessoftheirTSSconcentrationlimits manytimes.37

B. RESPONDENTSKNOWINGLY CAUSE -

WATER POLLUTION EVENT TO LAST LONGER

In discussingthewaterpollution in theAvon-FremontDrainageDitch in 1994and 1995,

RCA statesthat “[t]he IEPA, USEPAandothersfailed to determinethesourceofthe

discharge.”38Thatstatement,like manyothersin RCA, ignorestheevidencein therecord.39The

Illinois EPAwith thehelpoftheUnitedStatesEnvironmentalProtectionAgency(“USEPA”) and

Respondents’ownenvironmentalconsultantdeterminedthat SVA wasthesourceofthewater

pollution dischargedinto theAvon-FremontDrainageDitch.4°Respondentsshouldhave

preventedthis waterpollution incidentby remediatingtheirsiteyearsearlier.Sincetheydid not

remediatebeforeDecember,1994,Respondentshouldhaveat leastassistedin thewaterpollution

investigationandadmittedtherewereundergroundstoragetankson theirsiteso theoily discharge

couldbe cutoff sooner.

TheUSEPAdeterminedthattheoily dischargepollutingthewaterin theAvon-Fremont

37Tr. at 53 - 58; Compi.Exh.s 1,9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16 and17.

38RCAat7.

~ See,for example,Compl.Exh.s 23,24 (andUSEPAPOLREPofMay3, 1995,and
Huff letterofMay4, 1995attached),25 and 34; Resp.Exh. 6.

40 See,for example,Compl.Exh.s 23,24 (andUSEPAPOLREPofMay3, 1995, and
Huff letterofMay4, 1995,attached),25 and34; Resp.Exh. 6.
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DrainageDitch camefrom theSVA site.4’ Respondentsobviouslyagreed.42OnApril 25, 1995,

while theUSEPAwasagaininvestigatingtheoily discharge,Respondentsadmittedto Betty

Lavis,USEPAOn-SceneCoordinator(“OSC”), that”. . . theyhadfoundtheleakandwould

addresstheproblem.”43In termsofenforcementwith theUSEPA,Respondentssigneda “Notice

ofFederalInterestin an Oil PollutionIncident.”~Respondentsagreedto submita clean-up

projectplanto theUSEPAfor review.45Respohdentsagreedto disposeoftheusedoil absorbing

boomin theAvon-FremontDrainageDitch, install andcontinueto monitoranewboom,plug the

field tiles, andsearchfor othersourcesoftherelease.46TheUSEPArequiredSVA to searchfor

additionalsourcesfor thereleaseon theirsitebecausetheleakingstoragetankdid not contain

enoughoil to explaintheextentof thecontinuedreleaseinto theAvon-FremontDrainageDitch.47

TheUSEPAsuspectedthat, basedon SVA’s pastpractices,theremightbeapooi ofoil product

accumulatedundertheSVA site.48

Again in 2000,BettyLavisof theUSEPAwroteanotherPollution Reportrelatedto the

41 Compi.Exh. 25; Resp.Exh. 6.

42 Compi.Exh. 25.

‘~ Compl.Exh. 25.

~‘ Compl.Exh. 25.

“~Compl.Exh. 25.

46 Compl;Exh. 25.

~ Compl.Exh. 25.

~ Compi.Exh. 25.
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SVA sitein Grayslake.49Besidesreferencinga SVA oil releaseaffectingGraysLakein 1975,

SVA’s dischargelimits underarequiredNPDESpermit,andthereasontheSVA sitewasplaced

on theCERCLA list, shealsosummarizedthe 1995SVA waterpollution incidentaffectingthe

Avon-FremontDrainageDitch.5°“In April, 1995,apetroleumreleaseoccurredfrom the SVA site

into theAvon-FremontDrainageditch.”5’ Ms. Lavis “. . . tracedthereleasebackto a leaking

undergroundheatingoil tankon theSVA site.”52TheUSEPAdeterminedthe sourceofthe 1995

oily dischargeto bethe SVA site.53

TheIllinois EPA workedwith theUSEPAduringthe 1995 SVA waterpollution

investigation.54Theirdeterminationwasthesame;thesourceoftheoily dischargeinto theAvon-

FremontDrainageDitchwastheSVA site.55

WhenRespondentsfinally tookresponsibilityfortheoily dischargeinto theAvon-

FremontDrainageDitchandthecontaminatedconditionof theirsite,theirconsultant,James

~ Resp.Exh. 6. A copyis also includedin Compl. Exh. 34 asanattachmentto Huff’s
Site InvestigationandWork Plan.

50Resp.Exh. 6. A copyis also includedin Compi.Exh. 34 asanattachmentto Huff’s
Site InvestigationandWork Plan.

~‘ Resp.Exh. 6. A copyis also includedin Compl.Exh. 34 asanattachmentto Huff’s
Site InvestigationandWork Plan.

52 Resp.Exh. 6. A copyis also includedin Compl.Exh. 34 asanattachmentto Huff’s

Site InvestigationandWork Plan.

~ Compl. Exh. 25; Resp.Exh. 6. A copyofResp.Exh. 6 is alsoincludedin Compl.Exh.

34asanattachmentto Huff’s Site InvestigationandWork Plan.

~ Compl. Exh.s22,23, 24 and25; Compl.Exh. 6.

~ Compi. Exh.s23, 24, 25 and34 (SeeCERCLAReport,SiteTeamEvaluation
Prioritization,attachedasan exhibit, p. 4).
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Huff, alsodeterminedthatthesourceof thedischargewastheSVA site.56

Nothing, especiallyoil, shouldhavebeendischargedinto theAvon-FremontDrainage

Ditch from theSVA sitegiven thetermsoftheirNPDESpermit andSVA’s historyofrepeated

waterqualityviolations.57SVA’s NPDESpermit,whenit wasin force,allowedthemto discharge~

stormwaterinto GraysLakevia astormsewer.58TheAvon-FremontDrainageDitch doesnot

flow into GraysLake; it flows to thenorth into Third Lake.59

TheSVA sitehadyearsworthofwaterquality issuesandoil releasesknownto the

Respondentsstartinglongbeforethe 1994/1995releaseinto theAvon-FremontDrainageDitch.6°

Forexample:In Julyof 1975,SVA”.. . releasedoily wastesinto GraysLakevia atile system

that emptiesinto the lake. SVA conductedalimited cleanupoftherelease.”6’In the late 1970s,

56 Compi.Exh.s23, 24 (seealsoletterfrom JamesB. Huff, P.E.datedMay4, 1995,

attachedasexhibit), and34 (see,for example,pp. 14 - 17, 69,and theCERCLAReport,Site
TeamEvaluationPrioritization,attachedasan exhibit,p. 6).

~‘ Compl.Exh. 1, 6, 18, 19, 20, 22, 24, 34 andResp.Exh. 6.

58 Compi.Exh.s 1, 19, 20, 22, 24 and34.

~ Compl.Exh.s 18, 19 (seeJune4, 1991,memoto Bill Buschattached),22,23, 24, 25
and34.

60 Compi.Exh.s7 (seep.3, ItemNo. 7), 18, 19 (seeJune4, 1991,memoandD.L.P.C.

ComplaintInvestigationFormattached),22, 24, 34 (see,for example,pp. 10 - 12; Jan.2, 1985,
letterfrom DonaldManhardAssociates,Inc. ConsultingCivil Engineers;CERCLA Report,Site
TeamEvaluationPrioritizationpp. 3 - 4; CERCLA ScreeningSite InspectionReport,pp. 2-9to
2-11; USEPAPollutionReportofJune13, 2000; andLetterReportpreparedfor theUSEPAby
EcologyandEnvironment,Inc. May23, 2000,p. 3 attachedasexhibits)andResp.Exh. 6.

61 Compl.Exh. 34: CERCLA ScreeningSite InspectionReport,pp. 2-9to 2-11; USEPA

Pollution ReportofJune13, 2000;andLetterReportpreparedfor theUSEPAby Ecologyand
Environment,Inc. May23, 2000,p. 3 attached.Resp.Exh. 6.
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SVA hada practiceofdisposingofliquid asphalton theirunpavedsite.62Whenit rained,oily

matterwouldwashawayinto watersoftheState.63Severalyearsbefore1985,yearsworthof

residue’from SVA’s operationscausedoil wastesto bedischargedinto GraysLake.64InMayof

1985,oil contaminatingtheAvon-FremontDrainageDitch originatedfrom SVA.65 Basedon

SVA’s waterqualityviolations,theIllinois EPA (andtheVillage ofGrayslake)requiredSVA to

obtainaNPDESpermit thatsetdischargelimits for theretentionbasins.66

In 1988,theIllinois EPAinvestigatedtheSVA site for groundwaterandsoil

contaminationfrom theirsurfaceimpoundments,or retentionbasins,anddiscoveredthat SVA’s

wastepossessedhazardousconstituentsincluding(crudeoil orrefinedpetroleumproduct

components)toluene,ethylbenzene,andxylene.67

As aresultofSVA’ ssitehistory, in 1990 it wasplacedonthe Comprehensive

Environmental.Response,CompensationandLiability InventorySystem(“CERCLIS”).68This led

62 Compi.Exh. 24.

63 Compl.Exh. 24.

64 Compl.Exh. 34: Jan.2, 1985,letter from DonaldManhardAssociates,Inc. Consulting

Civil Engineers.

65 Compl.Exh. 34: CERCLA ScreeningSiteInspectionReport,pp. 2-9 to 2-il.

66 Compl. Exh. 24 and34 (p. 11 andCERCLAReport,SiteTeamEvaluation

Prioritization,pp. 3 - 4; USEPAPollution ReportofJune13, 2000; andLetterReportprepared
fortheUSEPAby EcologyandEnvironment,Inc. May23, 2000,p. 3 attachedasexhibits);Resp.
Exh. 6.

67 Compi. Exh.s22, 24 and34 (CERCLA ScreeningSiteInspectionReport,pp. 2-9 to 2-

11 attachedasan exhibit).

68 Compl.Exh.s22, 24 and34: p. 10 andCERCLAReport,SiteTeamEvaluation

Prioritization, p. 1; CERCLAScreeningSiteInspectionReport,p. 1-1; USEPAPollutionReport
of June13, 2000;andLetterReportpreparedfor theUSEPAby EcologyandEnvironment,Inc.
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to a 1991 ComprehensiveEnvironmentalResponseCompensationLiability Act (“CERCLA”)

Screening Site Inspection Report.69 Respondents were well aware of these oil discharges and

illinois EPA,USEPAactivities.In fact, theillinois EPA,onbehalfoftheUSEPA,interviewed

RespondentLarryFrederickwhilepreparingtheCERCLA ScreeningSite InspectionReport.7°

Yet, not once,with all oftheseenvironmentalissues,did Respondentsinvestigatetheir

own site to determinetheextentofcontaminationfor possibleremediation.But, in December,

1991,Respondentshadtheaudacityto~writeto theIllinois EPA claimingto be“. . . partnersin

protectingtheenvironment. .“~‘ Theygo on to statethat“{f]or us, acleanenvironmentand

goodhousekeepingarejustplain goodbusiness”andexpressinterest“. . . in a clean,neatand

environmentallysoundoperation...~“72 If Respondentsmeantwhattheysaid,theywouldhave

remediatedtheirsitelongbeforethe1994/1995oil releaseinto theAvon-FremontDrainageDitch.

Partnersinprotectingtheenvironmentdo not lie to thegovernmentenvironmental

protectionagenciesinvestigatinganotheroil releaseneartheSVA site.But thatis exactlywhat•

May 23,2000,p. 3 attachedasexhibits;andResp.Exh. 6.

69 Compl.Exh.s22,24 and34: p. 10. A completecopyofthereportis attachedto theSite

InvestigationWork PlanRespondents’consultantJamesHuff submittedto theIllinois EPA,
Compl.Exh. 22, 24 and34. Seealso,USEPAPollutionReportofJune13,2000; andLetter
ReportpreparedfortheUSEPAby EcologyandEnvironment,Inc. May23, 2000,p. 3 attached
asexhibits to Compl.Exh. 34 andResp.Bxh. 6.

70 Compi.Exh. 34, CERCLA ScreeningSite InspectionReport,p. 2 -4. Though
Respondentsconsultant,JamesHuff, preparedCompi.Exh. 34 for submissionto theIllinOis
EPAin 2000,he learnedaboutthe site’s“[e]nvironmentalissues”including “. . . oil releases,and
theplacementofthefacility on the CERCLAlist in 1990” throughaFOJArequest“. . . and
interviewswith EdwinL. andRichardJ. Frederick.”Compl.Exh. 34,pp. 8 - 10.

~‘ Compl.Exh. 7.

72 Compl.Exh. 7.
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Respondentsdid. TheIllinois EPAbeganinvestigatingthis particularoil releaseinto theAvon-

- FremontDrainageDitch in December1 994•73 The Illinois EPAwent to the area many times to

investigatethecomplaintsofoil in theditch.74 OnMarch 22, 1995,Illinois EPAFieldInspector,

ChrisKallis discussedtheoil dischargewith RespondentRichardFrederickandaskedhim

whethertherewereanyundergroundstoragetanks(“UST”) on theSVA site.75RichardFrederick

saidno.76

A monthlaterRespondents’storychanged.77OnApril 1 ~ while discussingthespill in the

ditchwith USEPAOSCBettyLavis,RespondentsRichardandLarry Frederick admitted there are

USTson site,but deniedthattheyleakedorwerein use.78On April 2S~,however,Respondents

admittedto finding a leakwhichturnedout to be in aunregisteredleakingUST.79Two LUST

incidentsfollowed.80

Did Respondentsknowabouttheundergroundstoragetankson SVA’s sitein December

1994,or MarchandApril 1995?Ofcoursetheydid.8’ Edwin andRichard Frederick know the site

~ Compi.Exh.22.

~ Compi.Exh. 22.

~ Compl.Exh. 22.
76Compl.Exh. 22. SeealsoCompi.Exh. 23.

77Compl.Exh.s24 and25.

78 Compl. Exh. 25. SeealsoCompi.Exh.s23 and24.

~ Compl.Exh.s24; 25 and34.

80 Compi.Exh. 34.

~‘ Compi.Exh. 34, beginningp. 6.
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history.82Their family ownedLibertyAsphaltbeforeSVA andoperatedthesite for decades.83The

FrederickbrothersworkedforLiberty Asphalt.84Theytold their consultantJamesHuff that SVA

acquired the assets from Liberty in approximately 1975.85 Respondents Edwin andRichard

Frederick are the only SVA shareholders and owners; they have always runthecompanyandbeen

the corporate officers ~86The three USTs that had to be removed after the April 1995 LUST

incident were installed in 1978.87 -

“Partnersin protectingtheenvironment”claimingto beinterestedin an environmentally

soundoperationwouldnotwillfully, knowingly, andintentionallylie aboutapotentialpollution

sourceontheirsiteduringan oil pollution incidentandinvestigation.Respondentsdid.

Evenwithoutremediatingtheirsitebeforethiswaterpollution incident,Respondents

couldhaveshortenedthetime oil wasreleasedinto theAvon-FremontDrainageDitchbymore

thanthirty days,from lateApril to March 22”~’,hadtheynot lied abouttheUSTson site.Real

partnersin protectingtheenvironmentwouldhavestoppedtheoil releasein Decemberof1994,or

January1995whenthecomplaintsandinvestigationstarted.88

82 Compi.Exh. 34.

83 Tr. at279, 432 -33; Compl. Exh. 34.

84Tr.at279,432-33.

85 Compi.Exh. 34, p. 7.

86 Tr. at 277,436; Compi. Exh. 35.

87 Compi.Exh. 34, p. 8.

~ Compi.Exh. 22.
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C. THE FACTS ARE IN THE RECORD

Thereis no wayto knowhowmanytimesRespondentsviolatedtheirNPDESpermitby

exceedingtheTSS concentrationlimits. Therecordis clear,however,that Respondentsrepeatedly

violatedthetermsoftheirNPDESpermitby filing falseDMRs, failing to file DIVIIRs, and

exceedingtheTSSconcentrationlimits.

Respondentsalsocausedor allowedmanywaterpollution incidents.Thewaterpollution

.eventchargedi,n this casewaseasilypreventable.Sincetheydid notremediatethesitebefore

December1994,Respondentshad‘a duty to assistin the:waterpollution investigation.89Instead,

Respondentswillfully, knowinglyandintentionallymisleadtheenvironmentalprotectionagencies

causingthewaterpollutioneventto lastmuchlongerthannecessary.

ThePeopleof theStateofIllinois standbythe factsthatarein therecord.

II. WHAT IS RESPONDENTS’ DEFENSE?

ThePeopleaskedthis questionearlierin its’ “ClosingArgument”becauseRespondents

hadpendingtheaffirmativedefensesof lachesandequitableestoppel,but failedto allegeany

facts,or introduceanyevidencein support.Now, in RCA theystatethatRespondentsEdwin

FrederickandRichardFrederickshouldbe dismissedunderthedoctrinesoflachesandequitable

estoppel.9°Thebasisfor Respondents’statementappearsto be thatthey lost theirrecordsmany

yearsafterthis casewasfiled becausetherecordswerethrownoutby thecompanythatbought

89 TheConstitutionofthe StateofIllinois, Article XI, Section1, statesthat it is thepublic

policy ofthis “. . . Stateandthe dutyof eachpersonto provideandmaintainahealthful
environment....“

90 RCAat 14.
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SVA’s assetsfor over $8.2million.9’

A. RESPONDENTSCANNOT CLAIM LACHES
BECAUSE THEY LOST THEIR OWN RECORDS

ThePeopleofthe StateofIllinois filed theComplaintfor environmentalviolationsin this

casein November,1995.92SVA retainedcounselDavid O’Neill, thesameattorneywhorepresents

RespondentsEdwinandRichardFrederick,by at leastMarch, 1996.~~Respondents,Edwinand

RichardFrederick,theonly SVA shareholders,soldSVA’s assetsin 1998 for over $8.2million.94

In 1998,this casewasstill pending,andDavidO’Neill representedtheRespondent.95

In 1998,Respondentswererepresentedby counselin theirmulti-million dollar saleof

assets.96Respondentsandtheircounselknewthis casewaspending.97Theyspecificallylistedthis

casewithin theAssetPurchaseAgreement.98Respondentsandtheircounselagreed”.. . to

indenmif~’ordefendandholdbuyerharmlessfrom all suchliabilities. . .“ relatingto theirsiteor

businessincludingthe failure to complywith statutesandregulationsrelatingto waterandliquid

~‘ RCA at 10- 11; Compl. Exh. 35.

92 RCA at 8; PCBdocket.

~ PCBDocket:3/12/96.David O’Neill continuesto representall Respondents.

94RCAat 10; Compl.Exh. 35 (Vol. 1).

95PCBDocket.

96 Compl.Exh. 35,p. 20. Sectionb.C. ofRespondentsAssetPurchaseAgreementis

titled “Approval of ProceedingsandLegal Mattersby Sellers’ Counsel”andprovidesthatall the
legal matters anddocumentsrelatedto theAsset Purchase Agreement shall be approved by, or
found satisfactory to Seller’s counsel.

~‘ Compi. Exh. 35, p. 14 andSchedule6(M).

~ Compl.Exh. 35, p. 14 andSchedule6(M). “Schedule6(M) Litigation andArbitration.
2. Illinois AttorneyGeneralenforcementactionfiled in November,1995 .. .
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wastepollution.99And, Respondentsagreedto obtain,attheirexpenseafterclosing,a“no further

action” letterfrom theillinois EPApertainingto theenvironmentalconditionsexistingattheir

site.’°°TheAssetPurchaseAgreementalsogaveRespondentsaccessto thesiteat all times after

theclosingfor thepurposeofobtainingthe“no furtheraction”letter.’°’ -

In 1998, all thepartiesto theAssetPurchaseAgreementandtheircounselknew the

environmentalconditionofthesiteandknewtherewasan environmentalenforcementaction

pending)°2

RCAclaimsthatSVA’s recordswereincludedaspartofthe $8.2million saleof assets.103

It is difficult to determinewhetherthat is true,ornot.’°4It is not difficult to determinethat

Respondentshadaccessto, andwereresponsiblefor, theirownrecords.’°5

TheAssetPurchaseAgreementgavefull accessto thepropertyandrecordsbelonging,or

relatingto Respondents.’°6TheAssetPurchaseAgreementalsoprovidedRespondentswith the

useofat leastoneoffice at thesitethroughApril 30, 2000.’°~And, theAssetPurchaseAgreement

~ Compi. Exh. 35,p. 21 - 22.

100 Compi.Exh. 35, p. 26.

‘o’ Compl. Exh. 35, pp. 26 and29.

102 Compi.Exh. 35.

103 RCA at 10, Compl.Exh. 35.

104 Compl.Exh. 35.

‘°s Compi. Exh. 35, p. 29.

106 Compi.Exh. 35, p. 29.

107 Compl.Exh. 35,p. 29.
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requiredall Respondentsrecordsto beremovedbeforeApril 30, 2000,by theRespondents.’°8

RCA statesthatRespondents“Edwin andRichardFrederickhadnocontrolover thenew

ownersdecisionto disposeoftheserecordsandalsohadno reasonto suspectthattheserecords

wouldbe ofvalueto them.”°9Thatis not believable.Respondentshavean$8.2million

agreementthatgivesthemfull accessto therecordsandtheright andobligationto removetheir

records.”°From November1995 throughApril 2000SVA wasin litigation for environmental

violations.” In January2000,Edwin andRichardFrederick,with full knowledgeoftheircounsel,

listed themselvesnot only aswitnessesin this case,but alsoasthetwo peopleresponsiblefor the

entire SVA operation.”2How couldRespondentsandtheircounselhaveno reasonto suspecttheir

recordswouldbeofvalueto them?

If, thenewownersdisposedofSVA’s records,it is becauseRespondentschosenot to take

responsibilityfor their records,just astheychosenot to takeresponsibilityfor complyingwith

theirNPDESpermit, for remediatingtheirsitebefore1994,andfor theirleakingunderground

storagetank.

108 Compi. Exh. 35,p. 29.

109 RCAat 10.

“o Compl. Exh. 35, p. 29.

“ PCBDocket.

112 RCAat 8 - 9; PCBDocket, January 21, 2000; Response to Complainant’s First Set of

Interrogatoriesto SkokieValleyAsphalt,Inc., seeresponsesto interrogatoriesno. 1, 7 and19. A
copyoftheResponseto Complainant’sFirst SetofInterrogatoriesis attachedto Complainant’s
“Motion to StrikeRespondents’Motion to DismissEdwinL. Frederick,Jr., andRichardJ.
Frederickor, in theAlternative,Complainant’sResponseto andRequestto DenyRespondents’
Motion to DismissEdwinL. FrederickandRichardJ. Frederick”filed May7, 2003.
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In light ofthesefacts,Respondentshavethetemerityto asserttheaffirmative defenseof

lachesagainsttheIllinois EPA.

B. RESPONDENTSCANNOT CLAIM LACHES
AGAINST THE ILLINOIS EPA

Laches cannot be invoked against a governmental body, like the illinois EPA, that is

attemptingto performits duties,or in actionsinvolving public rights.”3TheIllinois EPAhasa

duty to enforce the Illinois environmental laws andregulations,andthe public has a right to a

healthyandsafeenvironment.”4

1. The Frederick Brothers wereNamedOver a Year Before the Hearing.

The People of the State of Illinois properly added the Frederick Brothers as Respondents

in a SecondAmendedComplaintduring thesummerof 2002.”~After theywereproperlynamed

asRespondents,theFrederickBrotherswereallowedto,anddid, conductdiscovery.”6The

hearing took place at the end of October, 2003.”~

RCA claimsthat”.. . theRespondentsRichardFrederickandEdwin Frederickhavebeen

prejudicedin theirability to producerecords,recallwitnessesandremembereventsrelevantto

“~CookCountyv. ChicagoMagnetWire Corp., 152 fll. App.3d726, 727-28,504 N.E.2d
904, 905 (1st Dist. 1987).

114 415 ILCS 5/4 (2002),TheConstitutionofthe StateofIllinois, Article XI, andPielet

Bros.TradingInc. v. Illinois Pollution ControlBoard, 110111.App. 3d 752,758, 442 N.E.2d
1374, 1379 (SthDist. 1982).

“~RCAat 9; PCBDocketfor July 26,2002.

116PCBDocket.

“~PCBDocket and Trial Transcript.
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theirdefensein thismatter.”8 .

2. The Frederick Brothers Were Not Prejudiced.

The Respondents had the ability to, but chose not to, produce records.’19 In 2000, the

FrederickBrothersandDavid O’Neill listedthewitnesseswho would testifyonbehalfof SVA.’2°

Theylisted EdwinL. Frederick,RichardJ.Frederick,andJamesHuff.’21 Whotestifiedatthe

hearingabouttheenvironmentalviolationsrelevantto this caseonbehalfof all Respondents?

Edwin L. Frederick,RichardJ.Frederick,andJamesHuff.’22 Therewasneveranyindicationthat

becausetheonly two SVA shareholders,-thetwo corporateofficers responsiblefortheentireSVA

operation,werenamedasindividual Respondents,that theyneededanyotherevidenceto defend

themselves.Theyarethe sametwo witnessesfor SVA defendingthemselvesandthecorporation

againstthesameenvironmentalviolations.

Respondentsclaim,of prejudiceis baseless.

118 Respondents’ClosingArgument,p. 10.

119 Compl.Exh. 35,p. 29. Seealso SectionhA above.

120 to Complainant’sFirst SetofInterrogatoriesto SkokieValley Asphalt,Inc.,

seeresponsesto interrogatoriesno. 1 and 19.

121 Responseto Complainant’sFirst SetofInterrogatoriesto SkokieValleyAsphalt,Inc.,

seeresponseto interrogatoryno. 19.

122 Seetrial transcript.
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C. RESPONDENTS’ LACHES DEFENSEMUST FAIL

Lachesis adoctrinewhich statesthat Complainant’scauseof actionis barredbecause

Respondenthasbeenmisledorprejudiceddueto Complainant’sdelayin assertingaright.’23

RCA doesnotclaim thatlachesappliesto SVA becauseoftheIllinois EPA’s delayin asserting

the environmentalviolations.’24RCA implies thedoctrineoflachesshouldbenefittheFrederick

Brothersonly becausetherearecompellingcircumstancesandtheyweresomehowmisled.125If

Respondentscanprovetherearecompelling,orextraordinarycircumstances,then,andonly then,

canlachesbeinvokedagainstagovernmentalbody, like the illinois EPA, attemptingto perform

its function,or in actionsrelatedto public rights, like ahealthyandsafeenvironment.’26

Thereareno suchcircumstancesin thiscase. ,

ThePeopleamendedtheComplaintin 1997to addcounts,notRespondents,for additional

environmentalviolations.Neitherpartydid anydiscoverybeforethePeoplefiled theFirst

AmendedPetition.’27After theFrederickBrothersadmittedin discoverythattheywerethetwo

peopleresponsiblefor theentire SVA operation,thePeoplefiled the SecondAmendedComplaint

addingthemasRespondents.128Respondentsclaim thecompellingcircumstanceswhich prevented

123 City ofRochellev. Suski,206 Ill. App. 3d 497, 501, 564N.E.2d933, 936 (2dDist.

1990). ‘

‘24RCAat8.

‘25RCAat8-14.

‘26Cook Countyv. Chicago Magnet Wire Corp., 152 Ill. App.3d 726, 727-28, 504 N.E.2d

904, 905 (1st Dist. 1987).

‘27PCBDocket.

128 RCA at8 - 9. PCBDocket. This case was transferred to me, AAG Cohen,from AAG

Cartwrightwho resigned from the office, in June,2002. Sometime during June or July, 2002, I
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themfrom defendingthemselves,butnot from defendingthecorporation,includethefollowing:

the violations occurred a long time ago, they no longer work for the dissolved corporation, and

theyfinishedthecorporations’discoveryresponses years ago.’29

Respondentsdid haveto defendthemselvesagainstenvironmentalviolationsthat occurred

a longtime ago. TheyarethesameexactviolationsRespondentshadto defendonbehalfofthe

corporation.

Respondentschoseto sell SVA’s assetsfor morethan$8.2million, dissolvethe

corporation,andretire. In doing so,Respondentsknewtheywould still haveto defendthe

corporationagainsttheenvironmentalviolations alreadycharged;thesameexactviolations

Respondentshadto defendon theirownbehalf.

Respondents.completedsomediscoveryfor SVA yearsago;theadditionaldiscovery

necessaryfor all partiesrelatedto thesameexactenvironmentalviolationsRespondentswere

defendingonbehalfofthecorporationandthemselves.

Thereareno circumstanceswhatsoeverto indicateRespondentsweremisled,or

prejudicedby theIllinois EPA.

Respondents’claimof lachesmustfail. Complainantis notbarredfrom namingthe

FredericksasRespondentsmorethana yearbeforethehearing.TheFrederickswerenotmisled or

learnedfrom Respondents’counsel,David O’Neill, thateventhoughthecasewasset for hearing,
no depositionshadbeentakenyet. Uponreviewof the largecasefile, I learnedthattheFrederick
Brothersadmittedto runningtheentireSVA operationandthattheComplaihthadnotyetbeen
amendedto addthemasRespondentsin accordancewith, amongotherlaw, Peoplev. CJR
Processing.Inc., 269 Ill.App.3d 1013,647 N.E.2d1035(3~’Dist.’ 1995). I filed theSecond
AmendedComplaintin July, 2002.Thisall happenedbeforeJoelSternsteinenteredhis
appearancein thecase.

‘
29 RCAat 13- 14.
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prejudicedby beingnamedasRespondents,orbytheIllinois EPA. TheIllinois EPAwasandis a

governmental body performing its function which involves public rights, namely protecting the

right ofthepublic to havea clean and safe environment. The Illinois EPAdid not create any

extraordinaryorcompellingcircumstancesthatwould invokelaches.

TheRespondentshave~nodefense.

III. EDWIN & RICHARD FREDERICK ARE PERSONALLY LIABLE
FOR THE ENVIRONMENTAL VIOLATIONS

In RCA, EdwinandRichard‘Frederickadmittheyarepersonallyliable for the

environmental violations charged in this case. They don’t really come out andsaytheyareliable.

Infact, theytry to denyliability. But in doingso, theydescribesomeoftheirresponsibilitiesasthe’

shareholders and corporate officers running SVAandexplain that they had the ability and

authorityto preventtheviolations.

Fortunately, in Illinois environmental law, corporate officers are personally liable, for their

company’senvironmentalviolationsif theyactivelyparticipatedin theviolation,orhadthe

authorityto preventtheviolation.’30 All partiesagreethatthestandardfor corporateofficer

liability in environmentalenforcementactionsis .setfOrth in Peoplev. C.J.R.etal.’3’ As stated

before,acorporateofficer canbeheldpersonallyliable for his company’senvironmental

violations if he was personally involved in or activelyparticipatedin aviolation oftheAct, or if

130 Peoplev. C.J.R.Processing,Inc., etal., 269 Ill. App. 3d 1013,647 N.E.2d1035(3d
Dist. 1995) and People v. Agpro, Inc. andDavid J. Schulte,281 Ill.Dec. 386, , 803 N.E.2d
1007, 1019 (2”~ Dist. 2004).

‘~‘ Id.SeeRCAatl5.
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hehadthe abilityor authorityto controlthe actsor omissionsthatgaveriseto theviolation.’32

In Peoplev. Agpro, Inc., theCourtrelied on the~ case and found the President of the

corporation personally liable for the company’s environmental violations in partbecausehedid

not takeprecautionsto preventthepollution, he ranthe operations at the site, spent time at the

site, and supervised employees.’33 In this case, the Frederick Brothers did not take precautions to

preventpollution, rantheentireSVA operation,workedatthesite,supervisedemployees,and

muchmore. -

Edwin Frederick consulted with SVAforemen and acted as the liaison with government

officials.’34 He signed the late NPDESpermit application, other documents, and letters submitted

to the illinois EPA.’35 Hewas present at the site during environmental protection agencies’

inspections and investigations.’36

13’2 ~. at 1018, 647 N.E.2d at 1038. The C.J.R. Court relied upon the Eighth Circuit’s

decision in United States v. Northeastern Phar. And Chem. Co., Inc.. etal., 810 F.2d726(8th
Cir. 1986). In Northeastern Pharmaceutical, the federal government sought to have a
corporation’s president and vice-president held personally liable for their company’s improper
hazardous waste disposal. In holding these corporate officers personally liable, the Eighth Circuit
noted, that while the president of the corporation was not involved in the actual day-to-day
decisions to transport and dispose of the hazardous waste, he “was the individual in charge of
and directly responsible for all of Ihis company’s] operations, including those at the [subject]
plant,andhehadtheultimateauthorityto controlthedisposalof [his company’s]hazardous
substances.” 810 F.2d at 745 (underline added).

133 Peoplev. Agpro,Inc. andDavidJ. Schulte,281 I1l.Dec. 386, , 803 N.E.2d1007,
1019 (

2
fld Dist. 2004).

‘~‘ RCAat 2.

135 Compi. Exh.s 6, 7, 19 (April 22, 1991, and May7, 1991, letters attached), 28, 29 and
34 (SiteRemediationProgramApplicationandServicesAgreement).

136 Compl. Exh.s19 (June1, 1991,memo attached),23,24, 25 and34 (LetterReport

preparedfor theUSEPAbyEcologyandEnvironment,Inc. May23, 2000 attachedasexhibit).
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Richard Frederick also dealt with SVAforemen, hired and controlled the employees, and

approved the payment of invoices.’37 He signed and certified SVA’s DMRssubmitted to the

Illinois EPAwhether they were late, false, or indicated other NPDESpermitviolations.’38 Hetoo

was present at the site duringenvironmentalprotection agencies’ inspections and investigations.’39

In RCA, Respondentsadmitthatboth“Edwin andRichardFrederickmademajor

managementdecisionsanddecisionson spendinglargeamountsofmoneyonbehalfof SVA.”4°

EdwinandRichardFrederickfinally contactedtheconsultingfirm ofHuff andHuff, Inc. to try

andcontroltheoily dischargeinto theAvon-FremontDrainageDitch.’4’ And“[i]t is Edwinand

RichardFrederickwho continuethis effort. . .“ to thisdayto getsiteclosure.’42

Edwin andRichardFrederickarepersonallyliable for theenvironmentalviolationsoftheir

companybecausetheywerepersonallyinvolvedin or activelyparticipatedin theviolationsofthe

Act, or theyhadthe ability orauthorityto controltheactsoromissionsthatgaveriseto the

violations ~ Theycouldhavecompliedwith theNPDESrequirements.Theyhadtheability and

authorityto preventthe 1994/1995waterpollution incidentfrom everhappeningby remediating

~ RCA at2.

138 Compl.Exh.s2,3,4, 5,9, 10, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16 and 17.

‘~ Compl.Exh.s 18, 19 (June1, 1991,memoandD.L.P.C.ComplaintInvestigationForm
attached),22, 23, 24, 25 and34 (LetterReportpreparedfor theUSEPAbyEcologyand
Environment,Inc. May 23, 2000attachedasexhibit).

‘40RCAat3.

‘~‘ RCA at 33.

142 RCA at 34.

143 C.J.R.at 1018, 647 N.E.2dat 1038andAgpro,281 ill.Dec. 386, —, 803 N.E.2d

1007, 1019 (2’~”Dist. 2004).
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the sitebeforehand.And, theycouldhaveshortenedthewaterpollution incident.Theyareboth

individually liable.

IV. WHATPENALTY IS APPROPRIATE?

Any person who violates anyprovision of the Act shall be liable for a civil penalty.144

SVA, Edwin Frederick, and Richard Frederick are all persons who repeatedly violated provisions

of the Act and therefore, are liable for a civil penalty.

Section 42 ~providesthe law for civil penalties when the Act is violated.’45 Section 42(a)

states that any person that violates any provision of this Act shall be liable for a civil penalty not

to exceed $50,000 for the violation and an additional civil penalty not to exceed $10,000 for each

dayduringwhich theviolation continues.’46Sincethe evidenceestablishedthatDefendants

knowingly andrepeatedlyviolatedsectionsoftheAct, they are liable for a significant civil

penalty.’47

“The statutory maximumpenalty is a natural or is the logical benchmark from which to

begin considering factors in aggravation or mitigation of the penalty amounts. This is consistent

with thediscussionin theU.S. SupremeCourt]j~iand Gwaltney decisions, with U.S. EPA

Penalty Policy, and with Illinois decisions discussing a maximumpenalty.”48

‘~ 415 ILCS 5/42(a) (2002).

145 415 ILCS 5/42 (2002).

146 415 ILCS 5/42(a)(2002).

~ 415 ILCS 5/12(a),12(f) and42(a)(2002).

148 Illinois EPA v. Barry, PCB88 - 71 (May 10, 1990); see also People v. Gilmer, PCB99

- 27 (August 24, 2000) and People v. Panhandle Eastern Pipe Line Company, PCB99 - 191
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In determining the appropriate civil penalty, according to Section 42(h) of the Act, this

Board can consider any matters of record in mitigation or aggravation of penalty, including those

listed factors.’49

A. DURATION & GRAVITY

Respondentsnevercompliedwith theirNPDESpermit.Theyfailedto submitany DMRs

for thefirst month,May 1986,andmanyyearsto come.Thatviolation alonelastedfor years.

After admittingtheydid not file anyDMRs, Respondents agreed to submit them as required.

From 1989 through 1992, Respondents failed to submit nine more DMRs: duration more than 2

years plus 9 more times over the next three years. Respondents never had a representative

discharge sampling point through at least May, 1991: duration 5 years (more than 1825days),

gravityimmeasurable - who knowswhat andhowmuch was discharged from their site. They

violatedtheirTSS concentrationlimit requirementsmorethanadozentimes that weknowof.

Respondentsweresupposedto submit their NPDESpermitrenewal application to the Illinois

EPA aroundSeptember1, 1990, 180 daysbeforeMarch 1, 1991.Respondentscontinuedto

dischargeafterMarch ~ anddid not submit it until June of 1991: duration 270 days, gravity

severe- Respondents were never in compliance with their permit.

Respondents filed false reports with the Illinois EPA. This has nothing to do with the fact

that Respondents never had a representative discharge sampling point andall theirdatais suspect;

andit hasnothingto do with thefactthattheycontinuedto dischargefrom theirsiteaftertheir

permit expired. This has to do with the fact that Respondents intentionally photocopied DMRs

(November 15, 2001).

149 415 ILCS 5(42(h) (2002).
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from one month, changed the date, and submitted it to’ the Agency charged with monitoring and

protecting our environment. Nothing, in termsofpermit compliance,canrepresentamore serious

violation.

The only thing that ôould be more serious than intentionally filing false reports with an

environmentalprotectionagency,wouldbe to lie to theirrepresentativesinvestigatingawater

pollution incident.Respondentsdid thattoo. The1994/b995 water pollution in the Avon-Fremont

DrainageDitch, anotheroily discharge,waseasilypreventable.Nevertheless,it happened,andit

happened for over 5 months. Respondents could have shortened it by at least a month if not more.

B. PRESENCE OR ABSENCE OF DUE DILIGENCE

Respondentsconsistentlydemonstratedacompletelackofduediligence.

EventhoughRespondents’initial NPDESpermitwentin to effectin May 1986and

requiredmonthlysubmissionofDMRs, Respondentsfailed to submit anyDMRs to theIllinois

EPA until November1988.150After admittingtheviolationsandagreeingto correctit,

Respondentsneglectedto submitDMRs manymoretimesoverthenext fouryears.’5’ Ratherthan

takea samplefrom arepresentativedischargepoint, submitit for analysis,fill out a simpleDMR,

andmail it to theIllinois EPA,Respondentssubmittedfalsereports.Theydid nothavea

representativedischargesamplingpointfor years.TheyhadnumerousTSSconcentrationlimit

violations.Theyfailedto submittheirNPDESpermitrenewalapplicationon time. It wasn’ta few

dayslate; it was9 monthslate,andtheycontinuedto discharge.

By thetime thesourceofthewaterpollution in theAvon-FremontDrainageDitch was

~ Tr. at 32, 33, 49-51;Comp.Exhs. 1, 8A, 8B and26.

‘~‘ SeeTr. 48-53;Comp.Exhs. 1, 8A, 8B, 8C, 8D and 8E.
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determined, Respondents site had a twenty year history of water quality andoil contamination

issues. If they were diligent, Respondents would have at least started remediating their site before

December 1994. If they were diligent, they would have at least stepped up and helped with the

investigation on March
22~~

d,1995, if not months earlier.

C. HOW MUCH DID RESPONDENTSBENEFIT BY REPEATEDLY
FAILING TO COMPLY WITH THE ACT?

Although it maybedifficult to quantifyin aprecisemannerhow mucheconomicbenefit

Respondents derived by repeatedly failing to comply with the Act, it is clear the amount is

significant. All thatis knownfor sureis thatin 1998 theRespondentswereableto sell SVA’s

assets for over $8.2 million. Respondents committed the violations beginning a decade earlier.

Themostexpensiveviolation,waterpollution,startedin 1994.

ThecostofsubmittinganNPDESpermit on time, installingarepresentativedischarge

sampling point, taking samples, analyzing the samples, and submitting a DIVER to the Illinois EPA

is nominal. Nevertheless, over all the years, month after month, that Respondents violated their

NPDESpermitrequirements, they realized an economic benefit. They did not spend money to

comply with their NPDESpermit requirements.

Respondents also did not spend money to remediate their site before the 1994/1995 water

pollution incident.HadRespondentspaidto remediatetheSVA siteyearsearlier,the oily

discharge from their site maynot have contaminated the Avon-Fremont Drainage Ditch. Had

Respondents paid to remediate the site before the 199,4 discharge, the site’s contaminated

condition may not have taken 10 years to remediate. As of October 31, 2003, there was still
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remediation work left to perform in relation to the “no furtheraction’ letter.’52

Respondents’ claim that they have since inCurredcosts and made expenditures related to

their discharges into the Avon-Fremont Drainage Ditch and Grays Lake and that those

expenditures should be credited against their penalty.’53 Not so. The expense of compliance

incurred after an environmental violation, does not offset penalty or economic benefit. In the

PanhandleEasterncase,theBoardheldthat thefact “[t]hat aviolatorwill still incur coststo come

into compliance does not eliminate the economic benefit of delayed compliance, i.e., fundsthat

shouldbespenton compliancewereavailablefor otherpursuits.”54

TheUnitedStatesEnvironmentalProtectionAgencyalso emphasizesthewell-established

goal of ensuring that members of the regulated community, like Respondents, have a strong

economicincentiveto complywith environmentallawsthroughtheassessmentof acivil penalty

that at least recovers the economic benefit of noncompliance.’55 Section 42(h) of the Act was

recently amended to emphasize this exact point.’56 The courts employ the concept of economic

benefit to level the economic playing field and to prevent violators from gaining an unfair

advantage over their compliant competitors.’57 The goal of considering economic benefit is to

‘~ Tr. at389 - 90. JamesHuff, Respondents’environmental consultant explained that
“[w]e are working on the site investigation completion report. Wehave an ongoing soil
extraction operation at the facility. Wehave a risk assessment to do and corrective action
completionreportyet to do.”

~ RCAat 38, 39,41,42 and 43.

‘54People v. Panhandle Eastern Pipe Line Company, PCB99 - 191 (November 15, 2001).

~ 64 Federal Register at 32948.

156 415 ILCS 5/42(h) (2002).

‘57United States v. Smithfield Foods, Inc., 972 F.Supp. 338, 348 (E.D.Va. 1997).
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prevent a violator from profiting from its noncompliance andwrongdoing.

Respondents profited. Whether SVA’s assets would have been less valuable had

Respondents paid to remediate their site andcomplywith environmentallawsbeforethesaleis

unknown.WhetherSVA wouldhavehadfewer assetsto sell andRespondentswouldhave

profited less each year had they paid to remediate their site and comply with environmental laws

is unknown.Whatis knownis thatRespondentshadtheuseofthat moneythat shouldhavebeen

spent remediating their site and complying with environmental laws to enhance their business.

And, Respondentswereableto sell theirbusinessassetsfor morethan$8.2 million.

D. WHAT AMOUNT OF PENALTY WILL DETER FURTHERVIOLATIONS
AND ENHANCE VOLUNTARY COMPLIANCE BY RESPONDENTSAND
OTHERS SIMILARLY SITUATED?

ThePeopleoftheStateofIllinois cannotimaginethis situationhappeningeveragain:

repeatedlyviolatingNPDES permitrequirements,not overaperiodofmonths,butyears;filing

falsereportswith the‘Illinois EnvironmentalProtectionAgency;obstructingawaterpollution

investigationknowing asitehasa 20 yearhistoryofwaterqualityviolationsandoil

contaminationissues;andin committingtheseenvironmentalviolations,enhancingafamily

ownedbusinessto sell it for millions ofdollars.To enhancevoluntarycompliance”... andto

assurethat adverseeffectsupontheenvironmentarefully consideredandbornebythosewho

causethem”,’58 thePeopleprovidethefollowing penaltyanalysisfor Respondents’many

violations.

Count I. Respondentsintentionallyfiled falsereportswith theIllinois EPA two times. The

only appropriatepenaltyis themaximum: $50,000perviolation.Anything lessdetractsfrom the

158 415 ILCS 5/1(b) (2002).

31



purposeofthe Act andtheIllinois EPA,andcompromisestheIllinois environment.$100,000.

Count II. Respondentsfailed,to file for theirNPDESpermit renewalon time. Theyfiled it

over 270 days late. They continued to violate the terms of the permit anddischargefrom their site

without a permit. $27,000. ‘

Count III. Respondentsfailedto submitDMRs in April, June,August,September,

October,November,andDecember,1989;September,1990; andJuly, 1992:ninetimes. Normally

apenaltyof$1,000.00permissedDMR wouldbe appropriate,butnot in this case.Respondents

also failedto file DMRs in 1986, 1987,arid 1988.Plus,two timestheywroteto theIllinois EPA

acknowledgingthefact thattheyfailedto file DMRs and assured the agency they would comply

in thefuture. After that, ninetimes theyfailedto file. Aggravating.$3,000.00permissedDMR. 9

times$3,000.00equals$27,000.

Respondents never had an accessible representative discharge sampling point while their

NPDESpermitwasin force.What’sworseis thatRespondentsEdwin andRichardFrederick

were physically threatening andverbally abusive toward Illinois EPAField Inspector Chris Kallis

whenhewastrying to do hisjob asthelaw andtermsofRespondents’NPDES permitclearly

allow him to do; to determine whether Respondents had yet to install a representative discharge

samplingpoint.Mr. Kallis wastrying to protectthe environment.’59$50,000.

Count IV. Thewaterpollution incidentin theAvon-FremontDrainageDitch in 1994 that

lastedfor five monthswaspreventable.Respondentscouldhaveshortenedtheincidentand

reduced the resulting environmental impact by over thirty days. Environmental protection agency

investigators were called out based on complaints of oil in the ditch December 23, 1994, January

159 Compl.Exh. 19, seeJune4, 1991,memoattached.
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5, March 1, March 9, March 22, April 18, andApril 25, 1995.Respondentsobstructedtheir

investigation. The statutory maximumpenalty is $50,000 for December
23

td plus $10,000 per day

for thenext 123 daysthroughApril 25th, oranother$1,230,000.Themaximumcivil penaltyfor

waterpollution is $1,280,000. Respondents could have reduced the lengthof timetheoily

dischargewasreleasedby at least34 days; and thereby reduced the maximumpenalty by

$340,000.Respondents’waterpollutionpenaltyshouldbe not lessthan$250,000.

Count V. RespondentsviolatedtheirTSSconcentrationlimits for the30 dayaverage

concentrationfor stormwaterdischargesin August,September,andOctober,1991; February,

November,andDecember,1992;MayandJune,1993;andApril, 1995.160TheyviolatedtheTSS

concentration limits for daily maximumdischargeconcentrationin AugustandOctober1991,

June1993,andApril 1995.161Thirteentimesin all. Again, apenaltyof $1,000.00perTSS

concentration limits violation wouldnormallybe appropriate,but nothere.Eachofthese

violationsthat SVA submittedto theIllinois EPA wereaftertheirNPDESpermit expired.They

continued to discharge without a permit. And, these violations are evident because the

Respondents finally have an accessible representative discharge sampling point. All the data

submitted while their NPDESpermitwasin forceand without an accessible representative

discharge sampling point is suspect. Aggravating. $3,000.00 per TSS concentration limit

violation. 13 times $3,000.00equals$39,000.

‘60Tr.at53-58;Comp.Exhs.1,9,10,11,12,13,14,15,16 and 17.

161 Tr. at 53-58;Comp.Exhs. 1,9,11,16and 17.
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Total Penalty Summary.

Count I Filing FalseReports ‘ $ 100,000

Count II Filing NPDESRenewalLate $ 27,000

Count III Failing to File DMRs ‘ $ ‘ 27,000

InaccessibleSamplingPoint $ 50,000

Count IV Water Pollution ‘ $ 250,000

Count V TSS Violations $ 39,000

TOTAL PENALTY ‘ $ 493,000.00

ThePeopleof theStateof Illinois acknowledgethatthemaximumpenaltyis the

appropriatestartingpoint whenconsideringthecivil penaltyfor violationsoftheEnvironmental

Protection Act. Obviouslythis case hasmanyfactorsin aggravationfor theBoardto consider,and

the Respondents sold the assets to their business for many millions of dollars more than the

penalty listed in the People’s penalty analysis. However, the People of the State of illinois believe

apenaltyofat least$493,000.00will serveto deterfutureviolations,enhancevoluntary

compliance, andassurethatadverseeffectsupontheenvironmentarefully consideredandborne

by those persons who causethem.’62

E. PREVIOUSLY ADJUDICATED VIOLATIONS

ThePeoplearenot awareof anypreviouslyadjudicatedviolationsagainstanyofthe

Respondents. However, Respondents’ site has a history of water quality violations and oil

162 415 ThCS 5/1(b) (2002).
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contaminationissuesdatingbackto 1975,andtheviolationsin this casestartedin 1980s.

F. SECTION 42(h) FACTORS (6) AND (7)

The People of the State of Illinois do not believe factors 6 and 7 apply in this case. Section

42 oftheAct, asnotedearlier,wasrecentlyamended,but did not takeeffect until January-i,

2004.163The evidence in this case was presented at hearing October 30 and 31, 2003. The

evidentiaryrecordwasclosedattheendof thehearing.However,thePeoplewill briefly address

factors6 and7 herebecauseRespondents’usethemin RCAis disingenuous.

1. Whether RespondentsSelfDisclosed?

RCAstates for Count I that “[t]he Respondents were not in a position to self-disclose the

violationsbecausetheywerenotawareofthe allegedviolation.. ~“~~‘lRegardingthefiling false

DMRs,RespondentsintentionallyphotocopiedanotherDMR, changedthedate,andsubmittedit

to theIllinois EPA.Not onlywereRespondentsin apositionto self-disclose,theywerein a

position not to file false DMRs.

For Count II, RCAstates they did self-disclose because they wrote the state about whether

theyhadto file an application.’65RespondentsNPDESapplicationfor renewalwasduearound

September 1, 1990.166Respondents first wrote to the Illinois EPAin response to a “Failure to File

RenewalApplicationComplianceInquiry Letter” datedApril 22, 1991.167

163 SeePublicAct 93-575;415 ILCS 5/42(h)(6)and(7).

164 RCAat 38.

165 RCAat 39.

‘66Compl.Exh. 1.

167 Compl.Exh. 28.
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For Countifi, RCA againstatesthat“[t]he Respondentswerenot in apositionto self-

disclosetheviolationsbecausetheywerenot awareofthe allegedviolation.. ~‘168 Thatis a

blatantlie. TheirNPDESpermit explainedwhenDMRs wereto besubmittedandwheresamples

wereto be taken.’69If theydid not submittheDMR, or havean accessibledischargesampling

point, theyknewit. Further,theIllinois EPAnotified Respondentsatleasttwo timeswhenthey

werefailing to file DMRs. And two times,Respondentsadmittedto missingDMRs andassured

theIllinois EPAthat theywouldnot omit DIVIRs again.’70Theyneverdisclosedtheviolations.

ForCountIV, Respondentshaveno qualmssayingthey“. . . did in fact self-disclosethe

potentialsourceofthereleaseimmediatelyupondiscoveringthesource.”7’ Investigatorsfrom the

USEPAandillinois EPAwereoutattheAvon-FremontDrainageDitch andSVA numeroustimes

investigatingcomplaintsof oil in theditch beginningin December1994.Theareais surrounded

by farm fields,anearbynursery,andSVA. Respondentshinderedtheoil pollution investigation

whenthey lied abouttheUSTson theirsite. Admitting later,whenthesameinvestigatorsare

againapproachingthesite,andthesiteis theonly likely sourceofoil contaminationin thearea,

that in factthereareUSTsonsite andatleastoneis leakingis not self-disclosure.

2. Did Respondentsagreeto undertake a SEP?

RCA claimsthat addressingtheirdischargesinto theAvon-FremontDrainageDitch and

GraysLakerepresents“. . . ade factosupplementalenvironmentalprojectbecauseRespondents-

‘68RCAat4O-41.

169 Compl.Exh. 1.

170 Compl. Exh.s26 and27.

171 RCA at42.
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especially Edwin Frederick andRichardFrederick- took actions beyondtheactionsrequiredto

address the discharge from the SVAsite.”72 A “supplemental environmental project” or “SEP” is

an environmentally beneficial project Respondents agree to do in settlement of an environmental

enforcement action that Respondents arenototherwiselegallyrequiredto perform.’73 “De facto”

is not defined.

Remediatingagrosslycontaminatedsitethatovertheyearshaspollutedmultiplebodiesof

waters of theStateis an environmentallybeneficialproject.If Respondentsagreedto do sucha

project in settlement of an environmental enforcement action that they were not otherwise legally

obligatedto do, it couldhavebeenaSEP.Theydidnot.

Thefact thattheFrederickBrothersarefinally remediatingthesite, afterall theseyears,

doesnot maketheprojectaSEP,de facto,orotherwise.First, it caneasilybearguedthatthey

havea dutyandobligationto cleanthewaterstheycontaminatedand cleantheirownsitewhich

contributedto thewaterpollution.’74 Second,Respondentsneverenteredinto theirremediation

projectaspartof anenvironmentalenforcementsettlement;this casewent to hearingandis still at

issue. Also, basedon thefactthatRespondentshavearesponsibilityto cleanup theirdischarges

andthe cause of those discharges, remediating their own site would never qualify as a SEP.

Andthird, Edwin andRichardFrederickarelegallyrequiredto performthe site

172RCAat 38, 39, 41, 42 and44.

~ 415 ILCS 5/42(h)(7) (2004).

‘~ TheConstitutionoftheStateofIllinois, Article XI, Section 1, states that it is the
public policy of this”.. . Stateandthedutyof eachpersonto provideandmaintaina healthful
environment.. .
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remediation for another reason.’75 Edwin and Richard Frederick did not rernediate the SVAsite

beforethe 1994/1995waterpollution incident,eventhoughthesitehadahistoryofwaterquality

violationsandoil contaminationissuessince1975.Obviously,Respondentsdid someworkoff

andon sitein 1995whenall theevidenceshowedtheSVA sitecausedtheoily dischargein the

Avon-Fremont Drainage Ditch. But, the only way they could sell the SVAassets for more than

$8.2million wasto agreeto remediatethesiteandgeta“no furtheraction” letterfrom theIllinois

EPA.’76 They are legally obligated by contract to remediate the site. The long term project to

remediate their site that has been contaminated for decades does not qualify for a SEP.

V. THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS ARE ENTITLED
TO THEIR COSTS AND ATTORNEY FEES FROM RESPONDENTS

Section42 oftheAct alsoexplainswhentheawardof attorneys’feesandcostsare

appropriate.’77 Section 42(f) providesthat”. . . theBoard,ora courtofcompetentjurisdiction

mayaward costs and reasonable attorney’s fees. . . to the State’s Attorney, or the Attorney

Generalin a casewherehehasprevailedagainstapersonwho hascommittedawilful, knowing

orrepeatedviolation oftheAct.”78

SinceRespondents’violationsof sections12(a)and(f) of the Act were wilful, knowing,

and/or repeated, the People are entitled to attorneys’ fees and costs. Respondents intentionally

175 Compi.Exh. 35.

176 Compl.Exh. 35.

‘~ 415 ILCS 5/42 (2004)

178 415 ILCS 5/42 (f) (2004)
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photocopiedDMRs, changedthedate,andsubmittedthemasdifferentDMRs to theIllinois EPA.

Respondents wilfully and knowingly failed to submit their NPDESpermit on time claiming

monthslatertheydid nothaveto. Respondentsknowingly andrepeatedlyfailedto submitDMRs.

Respondents knowingly failed to have an accessible discharge sampling point while their permit

was in force. Respondents, aware of their site’s long history of water quality and oil

contaminationissues,intentionallydeceivedenvironmentalprotectionagencyinvestigators

causingawaterpollution incidentto lastmonthslongerthannecessary.AndRespondents

repeatedlyviolatedtheirTSSconcentrationlimits oncetheyinstalledan accessiblerepresentative

dischargesamplingpoint.

A. REASONABLE ATTORNEY FEES’

Many Assistant Attorney Generals were assigned to represent the People of the State of

Illinois over the years this case has been pending: Ellen O’Lauglin, (PCB Hearing Officer)

Bradley P. Halloran, Kelly A. Cartwright,Mitchell L. Cohen(“AAG Cohen”), Joel J. Sternstein

(“AAG Sternstein”),andBernardJ.Murphy(“AAG Murphy”).’79 ThePeopleareonly seeking

attorneyfeesforthetimespentandwork performedby AAGs Cohen, Stemstein and Murphy.

Based on the Board’s Order of October 16, 2003, AAG Sternstein’s fee application only goes

through that day.’8°

~ PCBDocket.

180 Respondents’ counsel David O’Neill used to work for and practices regularly before

the PCB. He knew of AAG Sternstein while Sternstein worked for the PCB. O’Neill did not
object for over a year to AAG Sternstein’sappearancein the case, or any work performed by
AAG Sternstein. O’Neill did not objectuntil essentiallytheeveoftrial: September 9, 2003. AAG
Sternsteinsworein acertifiedaffidavit thathehadnopersonalinvolvementin this casewhile
workingfor thePCB.Nevertheless,on October16, 2003,fourteendaysbeforetrial, thisBoard
issued an Order prohibiting AAG Sternstein from further participating in this case. The People
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A conservative estimate of time AAG Cohenspentprosecutingthis caseagainst

Respondentsis 509.5 hours.’81Multiplying thenumberofhoursAAG Cohenspentprosecuting

this casetimes thereasonablehourlyrateof $150.00equals$ 76,425.00 182 A conservative

estimateoftimeAAG Sternsteinspentprosecutingthis caseagainstRespondentsis 224.5

hours.’83 Multiplying the number of hours AAG Sternsteinspentprosecutingthiscasetimesthe

reasonable hourly rat~e of $150.00 equals $ 33,675.00. A conservative estimate of time AAG

Murphyspentprosecutingthis caseagainstRespondentsis 136 hours.’84Multiplying thenumber

ofhoursAAG Mui~physpent prosecuting this case times the reasonable hourly rate of $150.00

equals$ 20,400.00.

ThePeopleseekatotal of $ 130,500.00in attorneys’feesto bedepositedby Respondents

into the “Attorney General’s State Projects and Court Ordered Distribution Fund.”

B. REASONABLE COSTS

In addition to being entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees in this case, section 42(f) of the

Act also allows for payment of, and the People areentitled to, thereasonablecostsincurredin

prosecuting this case. Therefore, the People of the State of Illinois request an award of$ 5,574.84

object to the Board’s October 16, 2003, Order. Under these circumstances, the People are entitled
to attorneyfeesonbehalfofworkperformedandtime spentby AAG SternsteinthroughOctober
16, 2003. ‘

181 See Exhibit A: affidavit and time sheet summary.

182 TheBoardhasheldthat$150.00hourlyratefor attorney’sfeesis reasonable.See

Peoplev. J & F HaulingInc., PCB02-221(May 1, 2003),citing Panhandle,slip op. at37 (Nov.
15, 2001).

183 SeeExhibit B: affidavit andtime sheetsummary.

184 See Exhibit C: affidavit andtime sheet summary.
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for thecostsincurredinprosecutingthiscaseagainstRespondents.’85Thepaymentfor costsfrom

Respondents should also be deposited into the “Attorney General’s State Projects andCourt

OrderedDistributionFund.”

Thecostsarebrokendownasfollows:

Depositions $ 3,887.65

Off-site Photocopying $ 1,119. 34

AAG Cohen’stravel & lodging $ 305.62

AAG Murphy’s travel& lodging $ 261.23

TOTALEXPENSES $ 5,574.84

VI. CONCLUSION

WHEREFORE,Complainant, the People of the State of Illinois, respectfully requests that

this Board find that Respondents violated the Act as alleged in each count of the Second Amended

Complaint and ask for the following relief: ordering Respondents to immediately cease and desist

from furtherviolationsoftheAct and Board Regulations, assessing a civil penalty against

Respondents in an amount of not less than $ 493,000.00 with all finespayableto the

“Environmental Protection Trust Fund” to beusedfor the advancement of environmental

protectionactivities in Illinois, assessingComplainant’sattorneys’feesagainstRespondentsin the

amountof$ 130,500.00,andassessingcostsin theamountof$5,574.84,bothattorneys’feesand

costspayableto the “AttorneyGeneral’s,StateProjectsand CourtOrdered Distribution Fund”, all

185 SeeExhibit D: affidavit andexpense summary.

41



monies due within thirty (30) days of this judgment, andgrantingsuchotherreliefasthis Board

deems appropriate and just.

PEOPLEOFTHE STATE OF ILLINOIS,
exrel. LISA MADIGAN, Attorney
GeneraloftheStateofIllinois

MATTHEW J. DUNN, Chief
Environmental Enforcement/Asbestos
Litigation Division

ROSEMARIECAZEAU, chief
EnvironmentalBureau

BY: ________

Mitchell L. Cohen
Assistant Attorney General

MITCHELLL. COHEN
BERNARDMURPHY
Assistant Attorneys General
EnvironmentalBureau
188 W. RandolphSt.,20thFloor
Chicago,Illinois 60601
(312)814-5282/(312) 814-3908

1:\MLC\SkokieValley\ClosingRebuttalArgwpd
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StateofIllinois

CountyofLake

)
)SS
)

AFFIDAVIT

I, Mitchell L. Cohen, upon affirmation, state as follows:

1. I aman Assistant Attorney General in the Environmental Bureau North of the

illinois Attorney General’s Office and assigned to assist in the representation of the People of the

StateofIllinois in thecasestyled,Peoplev. SkokieValleyAsphaltCo., Inc., et al., PCBNo. 96-

98, filedbeforetheIllinois Pollution ControlBoard.

2. I havereviewedthehoursI spentprosecutingthis caseandassetforth in the

attached summary of work performed, and having personal and direct knowledge of same, the

undersignedcertifies that the statements set forth in this affidavit and attachment pertaining to

the hours spent prosecuting this case are trueandaccurate.

Furtheraffiant sayethnot.

Subscribedto andaffirmedbeforeme
this ~ dayof(~}ç)~~fi2004.

~Totary Public PHYLUSDUN2L ©~‘ICIALS~L~
NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES 12-7~2OO4’

Mitchell L. Cohen
Assistant Attorney General
EnvironmentalBureauNorth

~IBIT



Assistant Attorney General
Mitchell L. Cohen

Hoursworkedrelatedto Peoplev. SkokieValleyAsphalt.Inc., Edwin & RichardFrederick
CaseNo. PCB 96 - 98

_____ SUMMARY OFWORK PERFORMED

Meetingre: file transfer,call to opposingcounsel

Subst. of Counsel, Motion to Cancel Hrg, status hrg,
andfile review

File review, draft/file 2lxlAniendedComplaint

File review

Rev.Mo. to Strike 2”~’AmendedComplaint

Resp.to Mo. to Strike,Rev.addl. info. re: mo.to
strike,Bd. Order

PCBStatusHrg

Research! help draft Mo. to deem facts
admitted/summ. judg., prep. for filing, rev. D’s late
answer, and one status hrg

Review and Reply to D’s Response to Motion to
DeemFactsAdmittedandMotion for Summary
Judgment

ReviewBd Orderand file

Motion to StrikeAff. Defenses,Reviewand
Respond to D’s Motion to Dismiss Fred. Bros.

Discovery and Motion to Strike D’s Motion to
DismissFred.Bros.

Bd. Order, Review and Respond to Motion for
Extension of Time, Review Motion for
Reconsideration

MONTH HOURS

May, 2002 1 hour

June,2002 13 hours

July, 2002 11 hours

August,2002 3 hours

September,2002 1 hour

October,2002 - 5 hours

November,2002 1 hour

December,‘2002 11 hours

January,2003 6 hours

March,2003

April, 2003

3 hours

19 hours

May, 2003 16 hours

June, 2003 ‘ 9 hours



Assistant Attorney General
Mitchell L. Cohen

Hoursworkedrelatedto Peoplev. SkokieValleyAsphalt,Inc., Edwin& RichardFrederick
CaseNo.PCB96-98

PageTwo

MONTH HOURS SUMMARY OF WORK PERFORMED

July, 2003 31 hours Responseto Motion to Reconsider,Discovery,
Motion to Compel,Depositionpreparation

August, 2003 34 hours Deposition preparation, depositions (Edwin
Frederick, Richard Frederick, James Huff, Chris
Kallis)

September,2003 33 hours PCBstatushrg,D’s 2” Mot. to Dismiss,pre-trial
memorandum, trial prep.

October,2003 129 hours trial preparation,Bd. Order10 - 16 - 03, Mot. to Bar’
Testimony, Mot.s in limine, pre-trial hrgs, hearing
andtravel

December, 2003 47.5 hours Review hearing transcript and closing argument

January,2004 40hours ClosingArgument

March, 2004 3 hours Read D’s Closing Argument

April, 2004 93 hours ClosingRebuttal Argument

TOTAL HOURS: 509.5 HOURS

This is aconservativesummaryofhoursspentworking on this case.

1:\MLC\SkokieValley\MLCHours.wpd



State ofIllinois )
) SS

CountyofLake

AFFIDAVIT

I, Joel Sternstein, upon affirmation, state as follows:

1. I aman Assistant AttorneyGeneral in the Environmental Bureau North of the

Illinois AttorneyGeneral’sOffice andassignedto assistin therepresentationofthePeopleof the

State of Illinois in the case styled, People v. Skokie Valley Asphalt Co.. Inc., et al., PCBNo. 96-

98, filed :before the Illinois Pollution Control Board.

2. I have reviewed the hours I spent prosecuting this case and as set forth in the

attached summaryofwork performed, and having personal arid direct knowledgeofsame,the

undersigned certifies that the statements set forth in this affidavit andattachmentpertaining to

the hours spent prosecuting this case aretrueandaccurate.

Furtheraffiantsayethnot.

Joel Sternstein
AssistantAttorneyGeneral
EnvironmentalBureauNorth

Subscribedto andaffirmedbeforeme
this ~3~Kdayof , 2004.

E?L~O~L
(}~otaryPublic

• PHYLLIS DU~4TON
~NOTA~RYPtJBIJCI STATE OF ILLlNO~S
1~SSJpNEXPRESi2.7.2OO4

cEXBIT



Assistant Attorney General
JoelJ.Sternstein ‘

Hours workedrelatedto Peoplev. SkokieValleyAsphaltCo., Inc., et al.,
PCBCaseNo.,96-98

MONTH ‘ HOURS SUMMARY OF WORK PERFORMED

August,2002 16 hours Reviewedcasefile.

September,2002 16 hours DraftedComplainant’sResponseto Respondent’s
Motion to Strikethe2”” AmendedComplaint
(SubmittedOctober1).

October,2002 .5 hours Boardstatuscall on October16 (includes
preparationandinternalfollow-up discussion).

November,2002 .5 hours Boardstatuscall on November20.

December,2002 16.5hours Boardstatuscall on December23. Drafted
Complainant’sMotion to DeemFactsAdmittedand
Motion for SummaryJudgment (December 20).

January,2003 14 hours DraftedMotion for Leaveto FileReplyandReply
to Respondent’sResponseto Complainant’sMotion
to DeemFactsAdmittedandMotion for Summary
Judgment(January’17).

February,2003 .5 hours Boardstatuscall on February13.

March,2003 .5 hours Boardstatuscall onMarch 28.

April, 2003 32 hours DraftedComplaint’sMotion to StrikeorDismiss
Respondent’s, Affirmative Defenses including
meeting with AAG Cohen(April 18). Drafted
discoverydocumentsservedon Respondents(May
7)

May, 2003 26 hours Continueddraffingdiscoverydocumentsservedon
Respondents(May7). DraftedMotion to Strike
Respondent’s Mo~tion to Dismiss the Frederick
Brothersor in theAlternativeComplainant’s
Response andRequestto DenyRespondent’s
Motion to Dismiss theFrederickBrothers(‘May 7).

June,2003 .5 hours Boardstatuscall onJune27.



July, 2003 26.5 hours Boardstatuscallson July 10 and29 (July29 - long
call). InternalmeetingonJuly 23 to discussthe
case.DraftedFirst Motion to CompelRespondents
to Respondto Complainant’sDiscoveryRequests
(July 9) DraftedSecondMotion to Compel
Respondentsto Respondto Complainant’s
DiscoveryRequests(July28).

August,2003 42 hours Preparingfor depositionsofRichardandEdwin
FrederickandattendingdepositionsofRichardand
EdwinFrederick(August5 and6). Answered
Respondent’sdiscoveryrequestssubmittedto
Complainant(late August).

September,2003 24.5 hours Boardstatuscall on September5. Drafted
Complainant’sPre-HearingMemorandum(Sept.
22). ReviewComplainant’sResponseto Motion to
Strike SecondAmendedComplaintandRecuse
Attorney Sternstein anddraftattachedaffidavit.

October,2003 8.5 hours Trial preparationwith witnessesGarretsonand

Kallis. Boardstatuscall on October7.

(Only includeshoursthroughOctober16, 2003)

TOTAL HOURS: 224.5HOURS

This is aconservativesummaryofhoursspentworking on this case. It doesnot includetimethat
office law clerksspentworkingon this caseduring thesummerandfall of2003undermy
supervision.

I:\MLC\SkokieValley\Sternsteinl-Iours.wpd



State of Illinois )
)SS

CountyofLake )

AFFIDAVIT

I, BernardJ. Murphy, Jr.,uponaffirmation,stateasfollows:

1. I amanAssistantAttorneyGeneralin theEnvironmentalBureauNorthofthe

Illinois AttorneyGeneral’sOffice andassignedto assistin therepresentationofthePeopleofthe

Stateof illinois in thecasestyled,Peoplev. SkokieValleyAsphaltCo.. Inc., et al., PCBNo. 96-

98,~filedbeforetheillinois PollutionControlBoard.

2. I havereviewedthehoursI spentprosecutingthis caseandasset forth in the

attached,andhavingpersonalanddirectknowledgeofsame,theundersignedcertifiesthatthe

statementssetforth in this affidavit andattachmentpertainingto thehoursspentprosecutingthis

casearetrueandaccurate.

Furtheraffiantsayethnot.

B/nard/ Murphy(J~(Asst.Chief

1AssistantAttorneyGeneral
EnvironmentalBureauNorth

Subscribedto andaffirmedbeforeme
this ~ dayofC1)._jj9 ,2004.

~NotaryPublic ~ OFFICIAL SEAL

~ PHYLUSDU~ITO~
~NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF LLINOIS

~9~ISSI0NEXPIRErI ~L7.2OO4

EXHIBJ7



Assistant Attorney General
BernardJ.Murphy,Jr.

Hoursworkedrelatedto Peoplev. SkokieValleyAsphaltCo., Inc., et al.
PCBNo. 96-98

MONTH HOURS SUMMARY OF WORK PERFORMED

October,2003 - 125.5 Trial preparation,travelandtrial.

November,2003 8 , Preparedraft ofopeningclosingstatement.

April, 2004 2.5 , Reviewandrevisereplyin supportofclosing
statement; preparation of fees affidavit and
statementofhoursworked.

TOTAL HOURS: 136 Hours

This is aconservativesummaryofthehoursspentworking on this case.

J:\MLC\SkokieValley\MurphyHours.wpd



Stateofillinois )
)SS

CountyofLake )

AFFIDAVIT

I, Mitchell L. Cohen,uponaffirmation,stateasfollows:

1. I aman AssistantAttorneyGeneralin theEnvironmentalBureauNorthofthe

Illinois AttorneyGeneral’sOffice andassignedto assistin therepresentationofthePeopleofthe

StateofIllinois in thecasestyled,Peoplev. SkokieValleyAsphaltCo., Inc., etal., PCBNo. 96-

98, filed beforetheIllinois Pollution Control;Board.

2. I have reviewed the costs incurred by the State of Illinois prosecuting this case and

assetforth in theattachedsummaryof costsincurred,andhavingpersonalanddirectknowledge

of same,theundersignedcertifiesthatthestatementsset forth in thisaffidavit andattachment

pertainingto the costsincurredinprosecutingthis casearetrueandaccurate.

3. TheStateofIllinois incurred$5,574.84in costsin prosecutingthis case.

Furtheraffiant sayethnot.

Mitchell L. Cohen
AssistantAttorneyGeneral
EnvironmentalBureauNorth

Subscribedto andaffirmedbeforeme
this ~k’L day of , 2004.

ft
~otary Public OF~ ~

~NOTARY PUBLIC, STATEOF ILLINOIS ~
I~IONEXflRES1~4j

EXHIBiT —

D



Peoplev. SkokieValleyAsphaltCo., Inc., et al.

PCBNo. 96-98

illinois PollutionControlBoard

COSTS INCURRED BY THE STATE OF ILLINOIS

Depositions: ‘ $ 3,887.65

Photocopying, off-site $ 1,119.34

AAG CohenTravel & Lodging $ 305.62

AAG MurphyTravel & Lodging $ 261.23

TOTAL COSTS , $ 5,574.84



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I, MITCHELL L. COHEN, an Assistant AttorneyGeneral, certify

that on the l5~~1day of April, 2004, I caused to be’ served by

First Class Mail, The People of the State of Illinois’ Closing

Rebuttal Argument and Reply Brief to the parties named on the

attached service list.

MITCHELL L. COHEN
Assistant Attorney General

I :\MLC\SkokieValley\MotofFilingClosRebArg.wpd




